
                                     
Rhode Island Statewide Planning Program 

STATE PLANNING COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

Thursday, April 13,th,  2006 
William E. Powers Building 

One Capitol Hill, Providence, Rhode Island 

 
Members Present 

 
 
Mr.  Kevin Flynn, Acting Chair 
 
 
Ms. Beverly Najarian, Chair 
 
Mr. John O’Brien, Secretary 
 
Ms. Susan Baxter     
 
Mr. Daniel Beardsley     
 
Ms. Jeanne Boyle      
 
 
Mr. William Campos 
 
 
Mr. Thomas Deller 
 
 
Mr. Robert Griffith 
 
 
Ms. Anna Prager 
 
Mr. B. Michael Rauh     
 
Mr. Jared Rhodes     
 
 
Mr. Ralph Rizzo 
 
 
Mr. Robert Shawver 
 
 
Mr. Henry Sherlock 
 
Mr. John Trevor 
 
Ms. Janet White Raymond     
 

 
Representing Ms. Beverly Najarian, 
   RI Department of Administration 
  
RI Department of Administration 
 
Statewide Planning 
 
RI Housing Resources Commission 
 
RI League of Cities and Towns 
 
Representing Mr. William J. Fazioli, 
 City of East Providence 
 
Representing Ms. Lucy Garliauskas (Advisory Member) 
 Federal Highway Administration 
 
Department of Planning & Development, 
  City of Providence 
 
Representing Ms. Rosemary Booth Gallogly,  
 Budget Office 
 
Public Member 
 
Environmental Advocate 
 
Representing League of Cities & Towns 
 
Representing Ms. Lucy Garliauskas, 
  Federal Highway Administration 
 
Representing Mr. James Capaldi, 
 RI Department of Transportation 
 
Representing Mr. Steven Cardi, 
  Public Member 
 
Environmental Advocate 
 
Public Member 

 
 
 



SPC -2, April 13, 2006 
 

Members Absent 
 

Mr. Timothy M. Costa, Vice Chair  Governor’s Policy Office 
 
Mr. Joseph Newsome    South Providence Development Corporation 
 
Mr. William Sequino             Public Member 
 

Guests 
 
Ms. Diane Badorek    RI Department of Transportation 
 
Ms. Meredith Holderbaum   Senate Fiscal Office 
 
Ms. Kelly Mahoney    RI Senate Policy Office 
 
Mr.  David Reiley    Friends of India Point 
 
Mr. Tom Queenan    RI Department of Transportation 
 
Mr. Mark Therrien    RI Public Transit Authority 
 

                                   Staff--Statewide Planning Program 
 
Mr. George Johnson    Assistant Chief, Statewide Planning 
 
Ms. Blanche Higgins    Supervising Planner, Land Use 
 
Ms. Katherine Trapani    Supervising Planner, Transportation  
 
Ms. Nancy Hess    Principal Environmental Planner, Land Use 
 
Mr. Kevin Nelson    Principal Planner, Land Use 
 
Mr. Benny Bergantino    Senior Planner, Land Use 
 
Mr. Paul Gonsalves    Senior Planner, Comprehensive Plans 
 
Ms. Patricia Greene    Customer Service Specialist I 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1.  Call to Order  
 
     Mr. Flynn called the meeting to order at 9:09 a.m.   
 
2.   Approval of March 9th Minutes  
 
     Ms. Prager moved that: 
 
     THE MINUTES BE APPROVED AS SUBMITTED. 
 
     The motion was seconded by Ms. Boyle and carried unanimously.  
 



SPC -3, April 13, 2006 
 

3.  Chief’s Progress Report 
 
     Mr. O’Brien noted that the draft State Land Use Plan was presented by Mr. Kevin Flynn at the Land 
and Water Conservation Summit held in March as well as at the Historical Preservation Conference held 
last weekend.  Mr. O’Brien noted that Grow Smart Rhode Island would be hosting a major conference on 
the land use plan on May 12th.  He referred members to Grow Smart’s web site for registration details. 
 
     Mr. O’Brien also reported that the agency has selected the successful bidder on the land use 
interpretation of the 2003/2004 aerial photos.  He noted that he was anticipating that the contract could be 
initiated soon and work would begin this fiscal year. 
 
     Mr. O’Brien reported that the workshops and public hearings on the Five-Year Strategic Housing Plan 
have been scheduled for Tuesday April 18th and Wednesday April 19th.   He referred the Council to the 
handout that identifies the date, time and locations of the hearings.  He also noted that the draft plan, as 
revised to reflect comments from the Council, is posted to the agency’s web site. 
 
     The Challenge Grants and Corridor Studies Selection Committee has met and has provided the 
Associate Director with preliminary recommendations.  Staff has asked several applicants to modify the 
scope and/or budget of their proposals.  Mr. O’Brien referred the Council to a listing of the successful 
grant proposals.  He noted that staff would be sending out notifications to the grantees this week.   
     A Memorandum of Understanding and Cooperative Agreement have been drafted by staff for the Safe 
Routes to School initiative and provided to RIDOT staff for their review and comment.  These documents 
specify Statewide Planning's role in implementing this new program, and setting up a mechanism for 
reimbursement. 
 
     Mr. O’Brien stated that a CEDS Workshop has been scheduled for Wednesday, April 19th, at EDC's 
downtown offices at One West Exchange Street.  He noted that the 4th floor conference room has been 
reserved for the Workshop.  Mr. Tyrone Beach of the EDA will be the featured speaker, and, time 
permitting, a project review exercise will be conducted to familiarize participants with the review and 
scoring procedure that staff will follow to select projects for the Priority Project List.  Deadline for 
submission of applications is Friday, May 5th, at 4:00 P.M.   
 
4.  Transportation Improvement Program:  FFY 2006-2007 – Amendment #1 

 
     Mr. O’Brien noted that this amendment was tabled at the January meeting as there was a question 
regarding the availability of the required state match.  He noted that the issue of State match had been 
resolved, however, a reduction in the anticipated amount of federal funds has required another 
amendment to the TIP. 
 
     The public hearing scheduled for March 2nd had to be postponed due to the weather.  The TAC 
conducted the rescheduled hearing on March 23rd.  Mr. O’Brien referred to the hearing report in the 
handouts.  The TAC did recommend approval with some minor modifications requested by RIPTA and a 
change to an enhancement project. 
 
     Ms. Trapani of the staff reviewed the background, and summarized the amendment and the comments 
received through the public review process.   She noted that the TAC endorsed the Amendment including 
the changes requested by RIPTA.  The Enhancement project change is a clerical change requested by 
DOT.   She stated that it could be included administratively since a letter of concurrence on that has been 
received from the Town.  
 
     Mr. Shawver referred to handouts he provided that gave more detail on the background of the 
Amendment.  He noted that the Amendment was needed to add in the new Earmarked projects and 
respond to reduced funding in the flexible accounts.  The state anticipated $202 million in flexible funds 
in 2005, but only $184 million was received.  Similarly, in FY 2006, $166 million in flexible funding was 



SPC -4, April 13, 2006 
 

counted on, but only $136 million was received.  In dealing with the cuts, DOT held the Pavement and 
Safety categories harmless, and tried to be judicious in deferring projects.  No projects were dropped, but 
many were delayed a year or two.  He also noted that the Enhancement Program funding was cut due to 
reductions in that category, and that DOT will use its discretion in the Earmarked funding to advance 
those projects that are ready to move forward, even through funding comes in at level amounts over the 
five years.  Several projects from the old TIP were also carried forward.  A further Amendment may be 
needed when the 2007 appropriation levels are known.  
 
Discussion: 
 
     Mr. Flynn remarked that the real issue is that now one-fourth to one-third of the Program is set aside 
for specific projects that did not go through the normal selection and prioritization process.  
 
     Mr. Rizzo noted that the Administration’s continuing policy is to oppose Earmarks because they 
reduce MPO and State DOT discretion.  
 
     Ms. Boyle noted that not all Earmarked projects are bad.  She felt that most of the projects on the list 
would be very beneficial to Rhode Island.   Mr. Flynn agreed, but he noted that the Earmarking process  
allows them to jump to the front of the line, without state input.  Mr. Shawver stated that in response to   
Congressional requests,  DOT only forwarded projects that were on the TIP,  but the cities and towns also 
submitted earmarks directly.  
 
     Mr. Rauh questioned specifically what was being delayed or deferred.  Mr. Shawver replied that the 
detailed listing was provided in the substance of the Amendment, and that the handout deals only with the 
major program categories.  He referred to the Bridge Program as an example, and noted that the reduced 
funds required a number of projects originally set for 2006 to be moved to 2007 or later.  He stated that 
this could create problems since the state has many deficient bridges. 
 
     Ms. Baxter asked what a deficient bridge was.  Mr. Shawver replied that there are two categories: 
obsolete and structurally deficient.  He reassured the Council that, even with the cutbacks, DOT would 
still be able to address any bridge safety concerns. 
 
Action: 
 
     Ms. Raymond moved to:  
 
     AMEND THE FFY 2006-2007 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AS   
     RECOMMENDED BY THE TAC. 
 
     The motion was seconded by Ms. Baxter and carried unanimously. 
 
5. Land Use 2025:  State Land Use Policies and Plan – State Guide Plan Element 121 
 
     Mr. O’Brien noted that the plan presented to the Council included changes recommended by the 
Council as well as changes resulting from the public comment process.  Mr. O’Brien noted that the 
primary issue that concerned the public had to be due to how the future land use map would be used.  
Many viewed it as a zoning map that identifies areas for a certain intensity of development.  Staff has 
attempted to clarify that the map is a graphic portrayal of land use policy and it is not a statewide zoning 
map.  In addition, a number of changes have been made to the delineation of the urban services boundary.  
Mr. O’Brien referred the Council to the revised future land use map. 

 
     Mr. O’Brien concluded by reviewing several minor editorial changes that had been overlooked in 
preparing the final version of the plan. 

 



SPC -5, April 13, 2006 
 

Discussion: 
 
     Mr. Flynn noted that the staff had worked very hard on responding to comments received through the public 
process.  Significant changes to the Future Land Use Map’s Urban Services Boundary were made in the Saugatucket 
River watershed area to respond to comments and town concerns with the original delineation.  He also noted that 
the final draft version of the map includes sewer service areas, providing a further differentiation in development 
potentials.  

  
     Mr. Beardsley commented favorably on the staff effort and professionalism that went into the preparation of the 
plan, and conduct of the public review process. He noted that the majority of city and town comments were 
laudatory, and that the Program had responded to issues and concerns identified.  

 
     Ms. Prager agreed.    She stated  
that the staff had addressed comments and concerns she had made at prior meetings.   

  
Action: 
 
     Mr. Rauh moved to: 
 
     ADOPT LAND USE 2025: STATE LAND USE POLICIES AND PLAN AS ELEMENT 121 OF THE  
      STATE GUIDE PLAN. 
 
     The motion was seconded by Ms. Prager and carried unanimously 
 
6.  Work Program FY 2007 
 
     Mr. Johnson reviewed the schedule for the preparation and review of the work program that also acts 
as the unified work program for transportation planning.  Mr. Johnson reviewed Parts 2 and 3 of the draft 
work program.  He noted that Part 2 of the program discusses performance measures for the current year 
and the upcoming year.  Mr. Johnson reviewed the results for the current year with particular attention to 
progress on State Guide Plan elements and approvals of local comprehensive plans.  He noted that the 
percent of completed and pending complete tasks were the lowest this year than any year since staff 
began tracking performance.  He explained that the substantial increase in comprehensive plan 
amendments due to the local affordable housing plan requirement as well as the focus on the land use plan 
update and the housing strategy accounts for much of this change. 
 
     Mr. Johnson noted that he expected next year will be busy with guide plan updates scheduled for 
airport systems plan, rivers plan, water supply plan and surface transportation plan.  In addition, there will 
be a major effort directed at implementation of the land use plan to include increased technical assistance 
to communities.   
  
Discussion: 
 
     Mr. Rauh suggested that Performance Measures similar to the metrics used by the Economic Policy 
Council be established to track progress in implementing the new Land Use and Housing plans.  Mr. 
Griffith commented that as part of Strategic Planning’s inclusion in the Division of Planning, this would 
be undertaken. He noted a specific reference under the Land Use Plan task for FY07 to create such 
measures.  Mr. Flynn added that he expected such measures could be produced within 2 or 3 months. Mr. 
O’Brien commented that the May Grow Smart Conference on the Land Use Plan might also assist the 
staff in developing such indicators.  
 
     Mr. O’Brien noted that the budgetary portion of the Work Program will be brought before the Council 
in May, but if members had questions or comments in the interim they should contact Mr. Johnson.  
 



SPC -6, April 13, 2006 
 

 
7.  Other Business 
 
     Mr. Flynn noted that the Public Hearings on the draft Strategic Housing Plan would be held on April 
18th and April 19th.  He stated that staff is anticipating input from both housing advocates and cities and 
towns at these sessions.  He invited Council members to attend.  
 
     He also noted that the staff is working on the publication version of the Land Use Plan and an 
Executive Summary, both of which will be graphically interesting.  
 
8.  Adjourn 

 
     Mr. Flynn adjourned the meeting at 10:10 a.m. 

 
    Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
    John P. O’Brien, Secretary  
JO’B:pag 

 
 


	Thursday, April 13,th,  2006
	William E. Powers Building
	Members Present
	THE MINUTES BE APPROVED AS SUBMITTED.



